ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 14, 2007
1: 04 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Co-Chair
Representative Crai g Johnson, Co-Chair
Representative Vic Kohring
Represent ati ve Bob Roses
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Represent ati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki

VMEMBERS ABSENT

Al l menbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  ENBRI DGE | NC.
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REQ STER

DOUGLAS KRENZ, Vice President, Gas Transportation & Devel opnent
President, Enbridge O fshore Pipelines, L.L.C

Enbri dge, Inc.

Houst on, Texas

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information regarding Enbridge,
Inc. and the proposed Al aska Natural Gas Pipeline.

RON BRI NTNELL, Director of Pipeline Devel opnent

Enbridge, Inc.

Cal gary, Al berta, Canada

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions during the Enbridge,
I nc. presentation.

| AN MCFEELY, Vice President, Gas Devel opnent

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 14, 2007



Enbri dge, Inc.

Cal gary, Al berta, Canada

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions during the Enbridge,
I nc. presentation.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR CARL GATTO called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:04:23 PM Represent ati ves
Kawasaki, Roses, W/Ison, Edgnon, Cuttenberg, Johnson, and Gatto
were present at the call to order. Representati ves Seaton and

Kohring arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

PRESENTATI ON: ENBRI DGE, | NC.

1: 04: 44 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO announced that the only order of business would
be a presentation by Enbridge, Inc.

DOUGLAS KRENZ, Vice President, Gas Transportation & Devel opnent,
President, Enbridge O fshore Pipelines, L.L.C , Enbridge, Inc.,
began his presentation with an overview (slide 2) of Enbridge,
Inc., an oil and gas pipeline transportati on conpany. He said
Enbri dge: has an interest in 50,000 mles of oil and gas
pi pelines; owns and operates the world' s |ongest and | argest oil
pi peline system running from western Al berta, Canada, to the
M dwest and East Coast of the U S.; delivers half of the @ulf of
Mexi co's deep water natural gas production; has Canada's | argest
gas utility which is in Toronto, Ontario; and has international

interests in Colunbia and Spain. M. Krenz reviewed his
responsibilities within Enbridge and stated, "The nbst inportant
thing | am focusing on is how Enbridge can help facilitate

nmovi ng the Al aska Natural Gas Pipeline forward."
1: 08: 49 PM

MR. KRENZ, in response to Co-Chair Gatto, clarified that noving
the Al aska gas pipeline forward is the nost inportant thing that
he personally is working on, as opposed to it being the nost
important thing for the conpany. The nost inportant thing for
Enbridge is a very significant capital growmh program to expand
its oil pipelines. Strategically, the Al aska gas pipeline is
very inportant to Enbridge, he said, but it is even nore
critically inportant to the industry. North Anerica currently
has an extrenmely fragile supply and demand bal ance. An extrene
wi nter could result in school closures, he warned.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 14, 2007



1:10: 19 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO i nquired whether the fragility in North America's
gas supply extended to Al aska.

MR. KRENZ responded that Alaska has its own growh and demand

requirenents that conme into play. However, Alaska is a
significant frontier supply source for natural gas that can
primarily serve the Lower 48 s demand for natural gas well into

the future. Everybody in North America would benefit, he said.
1:11: 07 PM

MR. KRENZ pointed out that there is a gap in the supply-denand
bal ance between now and the time the Alaska gas pipeline is
expected to cone on-line in 2017. It was thought that |iquefied
natural gas (LNG would fill that gap beginning in 2010, he
said. However, global |iquefaction projects are sliding and LNG
is not comng on-stream as fast as was anticipated. Re- gas
projects in North Anerica are operating today at less than a 50
percent |oad factor. Wat has happened is that LNG has becone a
gl obal comuodity. He advised that even with full contract
assurance and shipper-pay utilization for new projects, there is
no guarantee that the LNG will show up at that facility. Thi s
is because the primary owners of LNG tend to be nmjor oi

conpani es and governments, and they will ship the LNG to where
ever the highest priced market for that LNG is. Enbri dge's
concern, he said, is that the US wll not be able to conpete

wi th Europe, especially in wnter, which puts further dependence
on finding a secure, stable, long-term natural gas supply -
Al aska has it.

1:13:21 PM

MR. KRENZ cautioned that supply wll neet denmand. VWhat this
nmeans is that demand will be destroyed if Al aska does not get
moving soon and LNG keeps falling off. Demand will nove
of fshore or sonewhere else, alternate energies will get lots of
|l egs and create lots of conpetition, and it will get harder and
harder to justify nmoving this project forward. This is the
biggest risk to all of industry, he said. Ri ght now the

econonmics are aligned to nake the project work and while the
producers are very tough negotiators, they want the project to
nove ahead.

1:15:10 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 14, 2007



MR. KRENZ, in response to Representative WIson, confirnmed that
Enbridge's inter-state pipelines are regulated by the Federal
Ener gy Regul at ory Conmmi ssi on ( FERC)

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether there will be an open season
sonetime in the future because Enbridge needs nore gas in its
pi pel i nes.

MR. KRENZ responded that Enbridge's Alliance Pipeline is fully
contracted through 2015. After that, all the contracts are up
for renewal. The Al aska gas project would go through a process
of having an open season. He explained that when Enbridge is
determ ning whether there is the demand for a pipe, the conpany
will go out with a nonbinding open season to see if anyone shows
up. If they do, then an attenpt is nmade to negotiate terns and
conditions to put the framework together such that there is the
support for a FERC application.

1:16: 34 PM
MR. KRENZ, in response to Representative Roses, confirned that
Enbridge is basically in the business of transporting product

and does not buy or explore for product.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES inquired about Enbridge's process for
wor king with the producers.

MR. KRENZ replied that if Enbridge owns the pipeline, a strong

shi pper-pay contract is required in order to proceed. Thi s
contract guarantees that the producer wll pay Enbridge
regardl ess of whether the producer ships volunme in the pipeline
or not. That contract, then, is used to finance the project.

The bank | ooks at that, he said, because Enbridge does not have
nearly the credit-worthiness as a ngjor oil conpany and the bank
| ooks to see who the real player is that will be backstopping
t he project.

1:17:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked what percentage of the gas product is
expended through the |iquefaction process and any other
processes that are required to get the product to market.

MR. KRENZ said Enbridge's position is that the natural gas

pipeline is by far the best solution for the industry and for
Al aska. There are conpetitive proposals to build a natural gas

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 14, 2007



pipeline to Valdez and liquefy it there for transport to various
mar kets, but Enbridge does not think that nakes sense in the
long-term There is energy conpression to liquefy gas, so there
are |osses, he said. Because of the large volune of gas in
Al aska, there is not market available on the North Anerican west
coast to accept that and floating LNG to foreign countries does
not do what needs to be done from North Anerica, nor are the

econom cs as attractive as the gas line. The gas line will also
have rich gas flowng through it and at sonme point there will be
some processing of the gas to extract the entrained liquid
products - the ethane, propane, butane - that wll nove

ultimately to refineries or petrochem cal plants. A key synergy
is the tar sands developnment in western Canada, M. Krenz
continued. Because the oil is very thick, diluent nust be m xed
into it and the diluent is nothing nore than the pentanes and
the heavier liquids that are extracted fromthe gas. This would
be a win-win scenario for everybody.

1: 20: 40 PM

REPRESENTATIVE ROSES reiterated his question as to what
per cent age of product would be [ ost by |iquefaction.

MR. KRENZ answered that he would be guessing on that nunber.

MR KRENZ, in response to Co-Chair Gatto, confirned that
pent anes can be shipped with the gas.

1:21:02 PM
CO CHAI R JOHNSON asked what the Alliance Pipeline capacity is.

MR. KRENZ replied that the capacity is approximately 1.6 billion

cubic feet per day (bcf/d). Enbridge has contracts for
approximately 1.3 bcf/d and, for the increnental voluneg,
Enbridge provides an authorized overrun service. Thus,
utilization of that pipeline system is maximzed, he said. I n

response to further questions from Co-Chair Johnson, M. Krenz
confirmed that the capacity is through conpression and various
technol ogies. The Alliance Pipeline systemwent into service in
2000. It is a high pressure, state-of-the-art system and could
easily be expanded with sone increnental conpressor stations.
He guessed it <could be increnmentally expanded to a maximm
capacity of about 2.5 bcf/d without putting new pipe into the
gr ound. Regardi ng whether [the Alaska Natural Gas Pipeline]
needs to run all the way to Chicago, he said that Enbridge has
| ooked at the decline curves in western Canada, and its

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 14, 2007



prelimnary assessnment is that between the Alliance Pipeline
system and TransCanada there should be adequate capacity to
accept the gas from Al aska's pipeline.

1: 22: 32 PM

MR. KRENZ again stressed that timng is critical. He further
outlined Enbridge's extensive experience in natural gas (slide
3) which includes 10,000 mles of natural gas gathering and
transm ssion lines and involvenent in joint venture partnerships
that nove over 5 bcf/d. There are technical challenges to
building the Alaska pipeline and Enbridge has technical
experience in both the north and south, he said. For instance,
in the Gulf of Mexico the conpany's deepest pipeline |ays on the

ocean floor at 6800 feet. Enbridge is experienced with very
sophi sticated techni ques, including robotics. In Arctic Canada
(slide 4), the conmpany built the first pipeline buried in
permafrost - the Norman Wells Pipeline. It was built in 1985
and is still owned and operated by Enbridge. He noted that

Enbridge is providing technical consulting to Al yeska Pipeline
Service Conpany regarding the changing of sonme of the controls
on the Trans- Al aska Pi peline System (TAPS).

1: 25: 33 PM

MR. KRENZ, in response to Representative WIson, relayed an
answer from his assistant in the audience that the gas pipeline
to Ilnuvik is about 35 mles |ong. One of the benefits of that
pipeline, he said, is being a part of the community and the
cul ture. The northern cultures are key stakeholders in the
| nuvik project and this requires developing and maintaining a
good rel ationship to prove that Enbridge will do what it says it
will do. M. Krenz detailed Enbridge's commtnent to corporate
social responsibility (slide 5). Social responsibility is going
to be a key to success in this project, he said, and First
Nati ons engagenent will also be critical to success.

1:27:16 PM

MR KRENZ noved to slide 6 and noted that Enbridge is
constructing $15 billion worth of capital projects over the next
7-10 years. These projects are primarily new and expanded

pi pelines associated with the growth in tar sands. This relates
to the Alaska Natural Gas Pipeline because the |abor force is
not there to carry out the magnitude of the projects in Al aska
and Canada. Enbridge will be recruiting and training workers
for its upcomng projects who will then be able to work wth

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 14, 2007



contractors from both Al aska and Canada. When its project is
conplete, he continued, Enbridge wll have the nbst recent
state-of-the-art experience in managing and conpleting major
cross-country natural gas pipelines.

1: 28: 39 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO inquired whether M. Krenz envisioned a single
pi peline or multiple pipelines.

MR. KRENZ replied that there is not a detailed design as that is
t he next phase of the project. He relayed that Enbridge woul d
expect a single, buried pipeline with a dianeter of 48 inches.

CO- CHAIR GATTO comented that this agrees with testinony the
conmi ttee previously received.

1:29:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that several years ago Enbridge had
tal ked about two 36 inch pipelines. He asked whether this was
still in the m x.

MR. KRENZ responded that no option has been elimnated at this
poi nt because there is not yet a project sponsor and the sponsor

will be the one to determ ne the pipeline design. Bui l ding two
parall el pipelines is nuch nore expensive than putting one in a
ditch, he said. Two smaller pipelines would give optionality
down the road to use one of the pipelines for sonmething else
should the gas supply drop off. Enbri dge, however, is
optimstic that the larger dianeter pipeline is the way to go
because there is significant reserve in Al aska. Addi tionally,
he said, once the project proceeds there wll be nore

devel opnent .
1:30: 58 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON told of her tour at Fort MMrray,
Al berta, one and a half years ago and of the drastic need for
nore workers at that tine. Enbridge will likely be fighting for
the sane workers, she surm sed, thus any workers trained right
now woul d find enploynent inmediately.

MR. KRENZ answered yes, very definitely. There is a significant

| abor shortage; over the |ast several years, Enbridge has seen
its |l abor costs go up 50-60 percent and this is concerning.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 14, 2007



1:32:11 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO returned to the topic of two pipes versus one
Wiile it is nore expensive to put two pipes in the ground, the
first pipe could be built and finished a year earlier and noney
could start being made, he said. Then a second pipe could
follow the same route as the first. He asked whether the
econoni cs of that have been dism ssed.

RON BRI NTNELL, Director of Pipeline Devel opnent, Enbridge, Inc.
stated that it was three years ago when Enbridge first |ooked at
the "dual 36's". At that tinme it appeared unlikely that the
mar ket would be ready for, or able to handle, 4.5 bcf/d "out of
the chutes."” The thought was that if a 36 was built, the market
could be ranped up over tine, he said. However, there is no
| onger a need for the dual 36's because, as tine has gone on,
the need has increased and the supply has decreased. Thus,
there should be the ability to take the full 4.5 bcf/d right
awnay.

1: 34: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON related that one of the concerns at the
time was that nuch gas coming on at one tine wuld drop the
price significantly. He asked whether this would still be the
case or will people buy it if it is cheap enough.

MR. KRENZ replied that Enbridge's perspective is that it wll
reduce the amount of denmand that is being destroyed for natura

gas. "There is adequate market to be served with this gas
supply based on our projection of when it is going to be com ng
on," he said. W need it all and it is not going to be a

pricing issue.
1:35:12 PM

MR. KRENZ discussed several points nade by the Honorable Jim
Prentice, Mnister of Indian Affairs and Northern Devel oprment,
during a presentation to the Canadian Energy Pipeline
Association in May 2006 (slide 7). He said the points made by
M nister Prentice are still relevant: the market w |l decide
what is the best and optimm solution and timng for this
project; there nust be an efficient regulatory process to
support the project to nove it ahead and expedite the regul atory
approval s; project mnmanagenent and cost control is going to be
signi ficant and key to a successful proj ect ; soci al
responsi bility and Aboriginal issues; and, finally, it nust be a

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 14, 2007



win-win solution for all of the stakehol ders, whether Al askan,
Canadi an, or North Anmerican end users.

1: 37: 06 PM

MR. KRENZ explained that in Canada there is debate about which
regul atory process to use - the old Northern Pipeline Act (NPA)
process from 30 years ago along with the [1976] Al aska Natura
Gas Transportation Act (ANGIA), or the new policies and
procedures based on today's environnment (slide 8). He said
Enbridge is optimstic that it will be the latter. The outl et
of this pipeline will not access a single pipeline. A producer
is going to have significant conmtnments to the Al aska Natura
Gas Pipeline in the form of "taker pays". What that neans, he
advised, is that the producers are going to want assurance and
reliability that the downstream pipelines are going to take the
gas.

1: 38: 23 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO inquired whether there is First Nations |land on
t he expected highway route to Al berta.

MR. KRENZ answered yes, through the Yukon Territory. The right-
of -way has been defined through that area, he said, but there
are stakeholders there that will need to be dealt wth.

1: 38: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested M. Krenz to address the concern
expressed by sone that a private conpany building the pipeline
will have no incentive to keep the construction costs as |ow as
possible in order to keep the tariffs low so that the producers
can have a hi gh netback

MR. KRENZ stated that there is much risk in the construction
phase of this pipeline project and Enbridge cannot take that
risk. The regulated returns that are allowed by FERC are not
hi gh enough for a pipeline conpany to take that |evel of risk.
Therefore, Enbridge's contracts would clearly state that any
cost directly accrues to the tariff in the transportation rates.
"In the future, and we have it in our oil pipeline systens, we
will likely enter into sone form of incentive tariff with the
shi ppers where we both benefit if we can create operational
efficiencies and | ower the cost," he said.

1: 40: 59 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 14, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG i nquired about Enbridge's experience
in dealing with the different regulatory processes on both sides
of the border and how they do or do not nesh. He referred to
slide 2 and asked whether there is a significance in regard to
the break in the pipeline where it crosses the border between
Regi na, Saskat chewan, and the United States.

MR. KRENZ expl ai ned that the blue line [shown on slide 2] is the
oil pipeline systemand the red line is the Aliance natural gas
pi peline system He said the break in the oil pipeline showm on
the slide is a printing glitch and that the pipeline in reality

is continuous. Wth respect to the regulatory process, the
Canadi an and U.S. segnments woul d need to be worked together in a
concurrent process for approval. The Alliance Pipeline system

is a good exanple of this, he said, because it is both a US
and Canadian pipeline and there are tariff structures on both
si des of the border.

1:43: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked what other benefits, in addition to
petrochem cal plants and oil extraction fromtar sands, could be
expected from a pipeline through Canada.

MR. KRENZ said this is the first project going through Canada
that is not sourced by Canada and the end use is not in Canada.
Thus, the comment that Enbridge hears is, "So what's in it for
us in Canada?" There is a lot in it for Canada, he said, such
as liquids extraction and the petrochemcal fit. He said he
tries to portray that it is a North American situation on a
suppl y-demand bal ance. Qher benefits to Canada could be that a
| arge dianeter pipeline going through a portion of the country
coul d becone a conduit for other devel opnment.

1:44:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES inquired what the anticipated benefit that
Canada wll go after is. |s the petrochemi cal part going to be
enough, is the liquid extraction going to be enough, he asked.
"At sone point in time what we have to take a |ook at is: are
we better off to extract those and use them ourselves and
devel op a product here," he said. "Are we better off to use
that as part of the enticenment in order to 'allow wus to use
their land to nove our pipeline through to our other states.”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- March 14, 2007



MR. KRENZ responded that the traditional issues will come into
pl ay, such as how nuch [revenue] Canada wll receive for the
right-of-way and in taxes on the asset. From a bigger picture,
Canada understands the strategic nature of the natural gas
supply in Alaska, the need to serve the North Anerican market,
and the |onger terminpacts of not serving that market. If all
the alternate energies are spurred on, he said, Canada has a
significant resource that may not be of nearly as much | onger-
term value as it is right now So, Canada is very incented to
wor k together to nake this happen.

1:46: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES commented that Canada's know edge of the
need to nove product is partly what pleases him and partly what
scares him Canada's recognition of the value of utilizing its
| and puts Canada in the nore advantageous bargai ni ng position.

MR. KRENZ said this is the real crux of the whole situation.
There are nunerous stakeholders in this project and if
reasonabl e conprom se cannot be reached, if greed cannot be
replaced with conprom se, then everybody | oses. Look at the
significant tax revenues that Alaska |oses every single year
that this project is del ayed.

1:47:52 PM

CO CHAIR JOHNSON asked what the conpensation would be for gas
taken fromthe pipeline [somewhere in Canada].

MR. KRENZ expl ai ned that the shippers on the pipeline would have
title to the gas on the liquids; initially, these shippers wll

likely be the major oil conpanies. If Alaska transports its
royalty-in-kind gas and has a shipping contract through the
pi pe, those liquids nay be part of Al aska's. Basically, there

woul d be a commercial arrangenment with the party that extracts
those British Thermal Units (BTU s) from the gas stream and the
shi pper would be paid for them Typically liquids are nore
val uabl e than natural gas, he said. Total BTUs may be |ost at
the end of the pipe, but the economic value will not be |ost.
Whet her Al aska decides to sell its gas or just do a netback
calculation to determne the royalty value, it would just be
part of an equation as to what percent of liquids is being
extracted and the value of that anount.

1: 50: 02 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 14, 2007



CO- CHAIR JOHNSON inquired whether extraction would affect
tariffs. WIIl tariffs go down after the point of extraction, he
asked, or is the tariff from Prudhoe Bay to Chi cago.

MR. KRENZ said that in the case of an extraction plant |ocated
at the end of the Alaska Natural Gas Pipeline, there would be
less gas going into the downstream pipelines and, yes, the
tariff would be based on the actual gas going through those
downstream pi pelines. He said he did not know what woul d happen
if the extraction is in the mddle of the Al aska pipeline system
because there nust be a tariff structure that covers the cost of
the Al aska system He did not know how it would be structured
if the upstream capacity is used. He said he thought that in
reality it would be nore likely that the Iiquids plants would be
| ocated at the end of the Al aska system

1:51: 08 PM

| AN MCFEELY, Vice President, Gas Devel opnent, Enbridge, Inc.,
stated that the Alliance Pipeline is a bullet line that goes
from northeastern British Colunbia to Chicago. Li quids are

extracted from the rich gas in Chicago by a conpany owned in-
part by Enbridge. After taking the liquids fromthe shippers on
the system dry gas - nethane gas - is returned to the pipe that
has the sanme BTU value as the liquids that were taken out. That
dry gas is then shipped downstream to make noney for the

shi ppers. There are other alternatives that Al aska could
consider, he said. For exanple, Alaska could build an
extraction plant at the end of its pipeline, take the I|iquids
and sell them into the Alberta market. Nobody w Il grab

Alaska's liquids if the state wants to keep them
1:52:25 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO asked whether a BTU of propane is worth a BTU of
nat ural gas.

MR. KRENZ responded that liquids tend to track oil price much
nore than gas price.

1:52:40 PM
MR. KRENZ noved to slide 9 of his presentation and noted that
Enbridge's agenda with the First Nations is an on-going process

of education, engagenent, training, building relationships, and
creating | ong-term enpl oynent opportunities.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 14, 2007



1:53: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether M. Krenz is pointing
out that TransCanada may not have the exclusivity with the First
Nations that it thinks it has.

MR. KRENZ explained that the NPA was approved 30 years ago when
much of the Alberta infrastructure was not there. There is a
route that is defined and, not surprisingly, TransCanada thinks
it should have the right and the NPA regul atory approval should

still be used. But that approval does not acknow edge that the
First Nations are a stakeholder in the project and it is not in
conpl i ance W th t oday' s regul atory and envi ronment al
requi renents. \Why would anyone think it will be rubber stanped

based on an out-of-date, 30-year-old deal, he asked.
1:54: 47 PM

MR. BRINTNELL clarified that there are First Nations in the
Yukon who actually own the land and have title and control of

the land, although there are sone that do not. Consul tation
requirenents are a responsibility of Canada's governnent, not
Al aska's. TransCanada has certain things that it was granted

exclusive rights to under the NPA, but that was prior to nodern
consul tation requirenents that have been put into |law over the
last 10 years in Canada. Constitutional rights of the First
Nati ons have changed since the NPA was enacted, he said. Thus,
while TransCanada has specific rights, Enbridge questions
whet her TransCanada has the exclusive right to nove the project
forward. There is no chance that TransCanada has the ability to
go unchal l enged by the First Nations in Canada.

1:56: 14 PM

COCHAIR JOHNSON pointed out that an agreenment still has
standing regardless of how old it is. Just because things
change in between, that agreenent does not change, unless |aws
are different in Canada than in the U S O course, anything

can be litigated, he said, but winning is another thing.

MR. KRENZ answered that the defined right-of-way is protected
and that has not changed.

MR. BRI NTNELL added that it is only a partial right-of-way. He

asked whet her Co-Chair Johnson was referring to the First Nation
i ssue or the exclusivity issue.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- March 14, 2007



1:57: 04 PM

CO CHAIR JOHNSON said he is referring to both. He inquired
whether there is sonething in Canadian |aw that supersedes the
agreenent of 30 years ago with the new constitutional anmendnment
for First Nations.

MR. KRENZ stated that the government has not yet ruled on this.
There are chall enges on the Canadian side of the fence and this
is one that Enbridge is pushing to get resolved. The response
has been that the Canadi an government will do sonething once the
Al aska project is actually noving.

MR. BRI NTNELL added that only certain parts of First Nations
i ssues have been dealt with under the NPA

1: 57: 56 PM

CO CHAIR JOHNSON remarked that this is a red flag to him Wy
woul d Al aska want to enter into a 40-year agreenent know ng that
it is going to be changed in 25-30 years, he asked.

MR. BRI NTNELL stated that Enbridge is not trying to take away
the rights granted to TransCanada and is not trying to change
the agreenent. TransCanada has specific rights, but it does not
have exclusivity.

MR KRENZ said there will be an approval process that wll
define what has to be lived with on the pipeline system

1: 59: 09 PM

MR. KRENZ turned to slide 11 of his presentation and noted that
the traditional supplies in the Lower 48 are dwndling. He said
Enbri dge expects the nmgjority of Alaska gas to go to the
nort heast and eastern markets. [Slide 11 lists the key markets
for Alaska gas as being the Mdwest and Northeast U. S., southern
Ontario, Canada, and Al aska. ] He explained that there is sone
expansion in existing re-gas projects and sonme new projects are
being constructed that have firm supply contracts (slide 12)

The projects that have not yet started and that are still
| ooking for supply are probably going to be |ooking for supply
until after 2015, M. Krenz predicted. Sonme of the LNG projects
are falling by the wayside; environnmentally they all have
chal | enges, but the biggest challenge is finding supply. He
nmoved to slide 13 depicting the global LNG supply forecast for

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- March 14, 2007



2004-2006 and noted that the forecast for 2006 is likely
optimstic as it is continuing to slide.

MR. KRENZ reviewed the notives for producer ownership (slides

14-15) and stated that the single word is control. The
producers wll bear the risk on this pipeline and there are
t echnol ogi cal chal | enges. Contracts with the producers for the

capacity of the pipeline are a nust-have, he said. The Al aska
situation is simlar to the one in the @lf of Mxico where
“Shell" built its own pipeline.

2:01:55 PM

MR. KRENZ explained that the Canadian oil sands devel opnment is
extrenely conplicated (slide 16), but despite the challenges the
devel opment noved ahead quickly and everybody is benefitting.
He acknow edged that the infrastructure is being stretched in
t he devel opi ng areas, such as havi ng enough workers.

MR. KRENZ said Enbridge thinks that the producers nust play a
key role in the Alaska project in order for it to nove ahead
(slide 17). Enbridge's concern is in respect to timng and the
producers need to be at the table sooner rather than later. The
i ssues that nust get resolved are those between the state and

the producers and once resolved the project wll nove ahead
rapidly, he said. The creditworthiness of the producers is
needed in order to have the higher financing on the project
which reduces the cost of service. In order to have the

producers sign the 25-year shipper pay contracts, the producers
are going to want to have cost control over the project because
they will be the ones to bear the risk of cost overruns.

2:04: 18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES summari zed his wunderstanding of what is
bei ng sai d: M. Krenz is confident that Enbridge would produce
a quality product should it be granted the authority to build
the pipeline; Enbridge is experienced in building pipelines in
Canada and the Gulf of Mexico; Enbridge is the best conpany to
deal with because of its relationships in Canada; and Al aska
will not receive a conmtnment from Canada until the project is
defi ned. However, he said, Alaska is not going to define the
project until the commtnents on the other end are known; it is
a give and take. He asked for M. Krenz's opinion on how
difficult it is going to be to secure a reasonable contract
t hrough Canada.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 15- March 14, 2007



MR. KRENZ said he is very confident. While there are issues in

Canada, they can be resolved in a tinmely fashion that wll not
cause any delay to the project. Once traction is seen on the
project it will becone a nmuch higher priority.

2:06: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noted that one of the requirenments in the
proposed Alaska Gasline Inducenent Act (Ad A Is that
prospective licensees nmust outline how they plan to secure First
Nations rights if the pipeline goes into or through Canada. I's
this easily definable, he inquired.

MR. KRENZ responded that he thinks Enbridge can easily define
what the issues are and establish a tinmeframe on when those
issues would have to be resolved to work with the project

schedul e. He recommended the state get the producers back to
the table and find conprom ses on those issues that need to be
resol ved. The pipeline is going nowhere wuntil there is an
agreenent on those issues, he opined. Enbri dge nust cone
together with a producer consortium before it wll spend the

time and take the risk of going through the AG A process.
2:08:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES appreciated M. Krenz's candidness as
Al aska cannot afford to hedge its bets and nove forward w thout
knowi ng what to anticipate. He said his concern is that the
stakes with Canada will get higher each day if the negotiations
i nvol ve putting the Al aska pipeline across Canadi an | and.

MR, KRENZ pointed out that there are a lot of commercial
arrangenments between the United States and Canada. Washi ngt on
[DC] will weigh in real quickly if Canada is not playing fairly
in this scenario because this is so critical to the Lower 48, he
predi ct ed.

REPRESENTATI VE RCOSES renmarked that M. Krenz my have nore
confidence in Washington [DC] than he does.

2:10: 02 PM
CO CHAIR GATTO stated that if Enbridge had the franmework of an

agreement with the producers, it could still cone forward to the
| egi sl ature.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- March 14, 2007



MR. KRENZ expected that if the producers cone forward with an

application in the [AGA] process, that application wll be
conditioned on resolving the fiscal issues. Fix that, he urged,
then all of the other noise will go away and things will start
novi ng.

2:11: 13 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO requested M. Krenz to expand his comments on
resolving the fiscal issues.

MR. KRENZ understood that there was sonme desire by the shipper
group to have clarity on future costs for the project which
i ncluded taxation. It was not necessarily just gas taxation; it
was al so oil pipeline taxation. The producers cannot be bl anmed
for wanting nore certainty on a go forward process, he opined.

There has been a little hiatus after the elections, but
negotiation is still ongoing. The group that Alaska is
negotiating with is "extrenely sophisticated [and] will try to
wear you out." They are very good at what they do, but they
also want to do the deal and they want to get it noving now
The producers see the sanme concerns and pitfalls that | have

been trying to explain, he said. Enbridge could be an operator
in the project, or a neutral third party in the pipeline group
with the producers to add val ue. VWhet her or not Enbridge is
involved, it is a win for Enbridge and for the industry to see
t he project noving ahead.

2:13:24 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO asked whether a 10 year certainty on a tax
structure that is in place at the time of agreenent seens
reasonable to M. Krenz.

MR. KRENZ said it may be, but whether it is reasonable or not is
unknown "until after you've gone through all this pipeline stuff
to get to that." What is the disadvantage of throwi ng out an
olive branch to [the producers] to cone to the table with the
new adm ni stration, he asked.

CO CHAIR GATTO responded that he thinks this is what is being
done. The tough point is getting a nediator to cone up with one
docunment that everyone can buy into that includes the tax
structure, the 10 years, the pipeline estimate, the dianeter,
the direction, and First Nations.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- March 14, 2007



MR. KRENZ agreed. However, he said, going through this pipeline
scenario does not really get to the issue that needs to be fixed
ri ght now.

2:15: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that a nmmjority of M. Krenz's
suggestions have been done, including converting the gross tax

to a net profits tax. Al aska worked really hard with the
producers, and while there is a difference of a percentage or
two, basically the structure is there. [ The |egislature] has

not heard what the big problens are, he said, the problens are
unknown until there is an offer on the table.

MR. KRENZ said he thought it unrealistic to expect to negotiate
such conplicated issues in an open forum C osed doors are not
meant to hide from the legislature what the admnistration is
doing with the producers. It will be tough to see progress, he
advised, if the players that the state is dealing wth have to
do sonething in a public forum

CO- CHAIR GATTO pointed out that a deal had been agreed to, but
there was no comritnent to actually do anything with the deal
The legislature did not think that was in the best interests of
the state, he said. The tax structure was one thing, but the
sinple core value that the producers did not even have to build
t he pi peline was unpal at abl e.

2:19: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG stated that he has been a pipeline
worker in the oil fields all his adult life. "You had to cone
to us with a pipeline deal that was really bad in order for us
to reject it," he said, "and that's what happened.” The

phenonenal election that turned things around shoul d have been a
| esson to the industry about the attitudes of the people of this
state. Now we are turning around and negotiating back, and the
negotiations nust be in public and be a part of the public
pr ocess. Sovereignty and Alaska hire issues nust be on the
t abl e. Representative GQuttenberg said he is wunsure if a
proposal that went around AG A would be acceptable, but that if
sone entity canme back to the people of Alaska through the
| egislature and the governor with a proposal that at |east
partially answered sonme of the questions and concerns, "we would
be at the table in a mnute's notice" with a special session.
Had the previous admnistration's product lived up to the
constitution and the conmmtnent that |egislators have nade to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 14, 2007



their constituents, he said, these neetings would not be
happeni ng right now - "they'd be ordering pipe."

MR. KRENZ appl auded the comments. He noted that Enbridge was
not part of the previous negotiations, but that it has offered
to help facilitate getting the project going because of the
timng concern and not wanting to see the project slide another
few years. He said he did not know whether AGJ A is the right
approach, but that there nust be resolution with the producers
for the pipeline to go ahead, "otherwise we're all just wasting

each other's tine." The state does not need to spend $500
mllion supporting a pipeline application; fix the issues and
the pipeline will nove ahead.

2:23: 33 PM

CO CHAI R JOHNSON asked whet her an open season commtnent of the
reserves that are known today would be enough to finance a
pi pel i ne.

MR. KRENZ said he thought yes with the [known reserves of] 35
trillion cubic feet (tcf). The upside is that as the reserves
grow and nore volunme is transported, the tariff gets | ower.

2:24: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES appreciated M. Krenz's wllingness to
provide a presentation as per the commttee's invitation and
t hanked him for answering questions that were beyond the scope
of what he was asked to speak about.

MR. BRI NTNELL said Enbridge has had dialog with the Canadi an

governnment and Canada will be ready to handle the issues. \Wat
Canada is looking for is that <costs do not outweigh the
benefits. In other words, if the pipeline goes through the

Yukon and roads have to be built it is not a negative to Canada.
If it is economc, Yukon would like to be able to have a tee to
be able to take gas off or put gas on. It is not that Canada is
going to hold out, he advised, only that Canada wants things to
be fair.

2:26: 21 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON understood the benefits that Canada woul d

want, such as property tax on the pipeline which would be a
normal thing. He inquired whether there is nornally a severance

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- March 14, 2007



tax on the gas or a transport fee for the BTU s when a pipeline
goes through anot her country or province.

MR. BRI NTNELL responded that normally it is just property tax on
the land that the pipe sits in.

2:27:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether there is validity to the
thought that if a non-producer were to build the pipeline, the
producers would be forced to release their gas into the pipeline
as a result of pressure from shareholders, the public, and the
U. S. Congress.

MR. KRENZ replied, "Based on ny experience dealing with the
sophi sticated players that you are dealing with, they are not
intimdated ... they react very negatively to pressure, |'m not
optim stic that that approach would be very worthwhile."

2:28: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON i nquired whether M. Krenz could provide a
witten discussion paper describing what would be a nornmal
third-party pipeline agreenment regarding tariffs and who bears
responsibility for <cost overruns when it is a third party
pi peline builder instead of the producers.

MR KRENZ said it would be a typical, standard inter-state
pi peline system

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said this would be hel pful for discussions
regardi ng whether to have the pipeline built by a third party or
by producers.

MR. KRENZ agreed to do so. The quick answer, he said, is that

on a non-jurisdictional, purely comrercial pipeline - which
Enbridge does all the tinme on its gathering systens - Enbridge
estimates the cost, does a reserves analysis on the
deliverability, and then establishes a tariff. Enbri dge m ght
bear the risk of the cost overrun, but the estimtes are put
together to conpensate for that. For cost overruns on a project

of the mgnitude of the Alaska pipeline, he said, the
expectation would be that the pipeline builder would go back for
another rate case to get a revised rate approved at the higher
cost of service.

2:30: 42 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 14, 2007



CO CHAI R GATTO tal ked about the different perspectives of Canada
and Al aska and the reasons why each party would like to see a
gas pi peline. Alaska is notivated, he said, but it is an
amateur dealing with "big guys" who know how to trick other
people, and this has nmade the state gun shy about accepting the
first offer. All the legislature is after is to have a deal
presented by Enbridge or anyone else that is fair and |ays out
all the details.

MR. KRENZ said Enbridge stands ready, willing, and able, and has
been trying to facilitate resolution of the issue. The
| egislature's job is to naxim ze value long-term for Al aska and
that is what the other stakeholders are trying to do for
t hensel ves as wel | .

2: 34: 44 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO commented that a deal nmay not be nmaxim zed, but
it could be adequate enough to agree to. Al aska does not want
to be flattened by a steanroller.

MR. KRENZ said Enbridge will try to be creative and work with
t he producers.

CO- CHAIR GATTO asked for Enbridge's opinion of the current
structure of the petrol eum production profits tax (PPT).

MR. BRINTNELL responded that the short answer is PPT can be a
part of the solution, but because Enbridge is not one of the

producers he cannot say whether it is "the" solution. Peopl e
must cone to the table to talk about whether the existing sets
of tools can be used - of which PPT is one - or whether to

change or nodify them So, the answer is all of the above.
2:36:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated that anyone worried about getting
hoodwi nked should not be at the negotiating table and should

hire a know edgeabl e representative instead. That is part of
the dynam c of where [the legislature] needs to be and why the
commttee is listening to presentations. This project will not
nove forward unless everybody has sonething to gain by it, he
not ed. The question is how to nmaximze the potential for the
state of Alaska and mnimze any liabilities. "I think we are
in the position to nove forward,"” he said. He shared M.
Krenz's concern about how open the process can be. Teacher

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- March 14, 2007



contracts are not done in public, nor are they expected to be
done in public. Therefore, he cannot see how sonething like
this can be totally open. Progress on the negotiation nust be
reported, he said, but the negotiation is not in the open.

MR. KRENZ responded that nost of his career has been business
devel opnent and coming up with win-win structures. The concern
is that it is not short-term it is not the first 10 years. The
state must be protected and be sure it is getting its fair share
down the road. Per haps there could be sone form of incentive
taxation structure that allows this fair share conpensation in
the future, he suggest ed.

2:41: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON presented a scenario in which an oi
pi peline and a gas pipeline each made $5 billion in profits. He
inquired whether M. Krenz would expect the tax rates to be
different on the oil profits versus the gas profits.

MR. KRENZ answered that it is the financial value that has been
created, so why would it be any different.

2:42:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON remarked that this has been one of his
chief conundruns in trying to understand. Even though the
producers get to subtract out all of their expenses under the
net profits systemso that profit is the only thing being tal ked
about, they are saying they want to pay one-third of the tax
rate on gas profits that they pay on net profits. It is
sonmething for which the legislature has not been given an
expl anat i on.

MR. KRENZ said he did not know. He guessed that, "It may cone
down to their economcs on the oil side of the business are nuch
stronger than the gas side of the business and when they

i ndependently | ook at the projects ... they can negotiate wth
you and bear nore tax load on the oil side than on the gas side
and still have the project be a project that neets their
criteria.”
2:43: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that it is the net profit in either
case, so the expense part is taken out. He said it would be
very beneficial to receive an answer on this.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- March 14, 2007



MR. BRI NTNELL responded that the issue nay be the risk factor.
Net profits do not take into account the amount of return on
equity that one mght need for a nore risky project. A riskier
project may require a |larger return.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON conmented that this is the main thing for
whi ch the comm ttee does not have a good under st andi ng.

CO CHAIR GATTO agreed. He noted that if a certificate of
deposit (CD) could be bought for a 10 percent return, why would
sonmeone go build a pipeline for 10 percent - but show ne a 10
percent CD.
2:45: 08 PM
ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:45 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- March 14, 2007



